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DEPARTMENT OF NETVONKS ANNUAL REPORT " 1996 liATEIt TAIKJI.AT|ON NO. 
k~TEIt MAINS, VALVES, AND HYDRANTS INSTALLED BY EACH ~GENCY, AND GLUUdTITIES ItEI~VI[D OR ~[D IN THE PRES~1IT EXISTING 5MTEE OISTNIBUTIOII SYSTEM AT THE END OF 1996 

~~TER MAINS TOTAL REMOVED LINEAR LINEAl OR FEET AGEKCY OF CONSTI~K:TITM FEET ABANDONED REMAINING I I(STALL[D IN SYSTEM 
ALgiers tdeter k~rke O~li nary Cent rw:,ts rdl~; Forces By t.-M-P Co(ltrlK:ts By I)-V-~ ContrKtl C-W.,A ~ E-R-A Contrllcts By tI-P-A Contrects By I~'U'A Ccrltr~cte By Ver(ous Var ~gmcles Un~mr HANO LInG) r F-P-H-A By I)rLeehs Levoe Soerd By I)t hel-ll By Docks Board 
TOTAL 

L9,SIO.O 6,6(.1,920.2 8~4,618.0 1,178,883.8 L~,S?&.6 33,860.2 258,848.9 52,649.6 3,158.0 2,753.0 1,176.4 169,381.0 1,920,171.5 9.508.2 

680.0 176,594.1 91,271.2 58,1L.~.8 1,657.3 1,705.7 9,649.2 
2,753.0 21,713.2 26,899.0 

~8,830.0 &,426,809.2 723,366.8 1,120,029.0 6~,,917.3 32,154.S 249,199.7 52,649.6 3,158.0 0.0 1,176.4 147.667.8 1,893,272.5 9,508.2 

INST. REN. IK~MAIN. INST. REN. IIPlAIN 
12 361 6,694 281 1 280 1&3 1,927 1,958 227 1,731 128 2,013 10,310 693 9,617 2 36 $6 & 52 6 64 89 3 86 19 401 &90 t9 641 31 19 19 

18 3S7 M1 29 3~208 4,227 121 18 063 ZS 4,Z02 
LINEAN FEE1 9,162,767.1 391,777.5 8,770,969.6 15,610 706 1&,904 18,;~6 %020 17,206 MILES 1,803.7 74.2 1,TZ9.5 

IV-29 





DEPA~'/'I(i~NT OF' NI~J~RJKS Ah'NUAL P~POLT - 1996 WATER ~A~C~.~.2'ION NO. 3 LI~(IT]I OF WATER )[AXHI Or ERCH ill! ~JhrO I'~'JL~RIAL, 1~)4~1~! Or VALVE80P rJ,(~ I|IE OAT]~ ~ CHECK, ORIOZNAI~%y INS'~AT~[,J~D, THE OUANTITIEi PJ~4OV]CD OR ]4~DO~D, ~ 2~J~ 0uAkr~xTXES PJe~,XNINO IN THZ DXSTP.IIS~XON SySTI~ AT THI: ~ OF 2996 ~TKJ Itq [KS mATEtl~ SIZE Llll. FT, Llll. FT tiS' A~LI~ KMOV~ Concrete PIl~ iS. ll**l pipe SO" It~t Pill ~" Chit lr0~ PiPe 48" ~mt I~ P*pe 13" ~t arm Pip4 ]16. st**t PiP* ~" 
p~tr~s C~ret* 30~ a.c.~, pip* 1o. t~ctlt* ]r~ pip* So. st~i pipe so- p,v.c. Pt~* S~ ~~rot ~ pl~ 24" p.v.c, PIp* 21- r~r.t.l.Ip* 2~" DO:till Ir~ PI~ 20" I.C.P. pip* is. ~~nt ir~ Plpe 16" ~~r*te Pipe 16" D~:tILt Ir~ PIF4 16" p.v.c. Pl~ ~6" I.C*P. plpt 15" lit~l PI~ 12- ~tli. [r: PIpe 12" p.v.c. Ptpe lZ. ~~t I~ plpe 1o. D~till Jr~ PIpe I0~ t ~ 10. PLiit Ic Pip 1o. P.v.c. Pl~ 10- pli|t Ic plpl i- cl*t I~ PIpe o. l~glIl Ir~ Pipe e. p.v.c, pl~ e. p.v.c. Pipe 6" *b~t~s c~t 6" Pl,ltlr Pipe 6. bil le~ Pipe /.*" Pt~lilc Pl~ i- p.v.c, pipe ~. ~t~lmqKf Pipe 3" Ste,I PIpe 1. 

#.slS.I 
13,~9.$ lS,lmo.1 l,s61.9 i,t.ll~, 1 S6.s 1t,761.1 3 r,i#~.7 l?,t .o dl,l?.l,! 1,183.l ]t,ISi,i 1,919,6 3s.o I p,6oz.z ioz.s 3l,$97,1 3,116.9 S.0 1O;.?6S.B $,&19.~ l;r,61~.o i,+,ilo.~ I,~.5 llZ,S 9~.s 12' ,060,5 1,985.9 1,900,~ 1.21fl.6 s ,~s.5 1.069.3 9~i ,01Z.l S~,9~.S 1,Z~.9 36g,064.3 1.19Z.? ~,610.) m3,197.7 tl.15S.Z 896.S S0.2 11,?~.6 153.9 ZI8.O ~1 ,ozs.a 
IO 1~.8 I~ ",01.9 1.13) o~,.o 17,578.3 lZ1 SSS.~ /ll.l 1,30~, 60?.6 79,165.9 Z,ll~9.6 1,36L.7 ll,e~.~.l 1l,lll.I S,7~Z.$ 3~.9 
1,r91.) 74.2 IV-30 
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6" PVC 8" PVC 10" PVC 12" PVC 12" STEEl, 14" STEEL 15" PVC 16" STEEL 18" PVC ~.4" STEEL 
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ANNUAL REPORT - 1996 
SEWERS BUILT DURING 1996 
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ANNUP~ REPORT - 1996 SEWER ~ABULATION NO. 3 LENGTH OF SEWERS OF F~CH SZZE AND MATERIAL BUILTt DISCARDEDa AND NOW RE~4~ININO IN TEE SYSTEM 

92" mt~l 8t l 6*" co~cret* s6 Jt Z SO" Ot~1 t0- oo~c~. 14- cQ~c~ 14" a~1 sl" Co~crlC* so. Its1 4e" Co~cr~e 41" 8t~l 41" coaerl~e 4~~ Conch. 4P Its) ." ma~k .- Cmcr.~* Ji" Jlreltre*ll6 Concert 31" ImLnforc4d ,~nc~t* .- lt~x sl- c.. ~ron 13" lrlCk 35" psi~tor~l~ 4Xmcroto =o- VRrLtLed C .ly 30" Stick lO" 1+*ltrllll4 +crete 30" tlLnfor~ld 1~oncri+i 30" ~a|t fro. 30" line =p Fvc II- rvc 27" Vltri~~ld C~sy 17" ~.r. Cot. 37" ~lI~torce4 ,~oncrete :~. rye :p c*.t :.~ +4" ltminforced =ohcrete =4" ~VC :4" 8tH~ +1" I~~mform+ ~omcr*~l z0- l~Ctile |ro~ p~pm 11. ~vc 
11. etll~ic 11. pillti~ ~ii 1s. vxtrL~ ~Xly 1o. V~trL~Led CLIy 10" concr*~e 
I' ex.tLc e' cone.re e. v.. cot. e' c.t ~. l.+ wtae+.~ czly r, ez.tLc ~. l,, comc.t. p c.t z~. i,, VLtrSfil~ ~ii~ i*~ ~xll~ L~ r, ~z.u~ ~~. r, wc 4" ~etLlo lr~n 4+ IPllet.L~ 

26.1 
21;I.4 
z,oll.l 21.o 211.8 

1,.1.+ 14.0 20,|,.~ ),s0s.~ 2+3,1 2.0 
7.413.S t+bOl.l 14,617.1 
2LO 4;I,~I0.0 2+0 IILO 14L+III$.1 2+1121.0 21,043JI 1e431*J 

"I. Otlh 211* l 
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ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT: COSt to Process a Miscellaneous Invoice Cost to Process a Vendor Invoice Cost to Process a Paycheck 
INFORMATION SYSTEMS: Cost to Microfiche a Document in Records & Data Management Cost to Retrieve a Microfiche Customer Account In Records & Data Management 
PERSONNEL DEPARTMENt: Cost to Hire an Employee 

5.49 7.04 2.93 
$ 0.61 $ 2.19 
$416.41 

PURCHASING DEPARTMENT: Cost to Produce a Sundry Purchase Order $ 9.23 
REVENUE DEPARTMENT: Cost to Read a Meter Cost to Render a Bill (Less Meter Reading) 
COST TO PURIFY A MILLION GALLONS OF WATER Carrollton Operation Algiers Operation 
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$ 0.32 $ 0.51 
$ 98.44 $261.50 



DEPARTMENT OF NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT - 1996 NATER TABULATION NO. 1 WATER MAINS LAID DURING 1996 QUANTITIES MEASURED IN FE[~ 

FIRE HYDRANTS 
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POWEI~. PURCHASED AND PRODUCED NATURAL C-IAS AND FUEL OIL CONSUMED - 1996 
KW-HRS COST ELEC'FRIC POWER PURCHASED 56,941,034 $4,397,111 ELECTRIC AND STEAM POWER 48,751,200 $9,540,981 GENERATE[) BY THE S.& W.B.* TOTAL 105,692,234 $13,938,092 

NOTE: *NATURAL GAS CONSUMED IN OPERATION WAS 1,392,980 MCF A'I- A COST OF $7,721,145.22. FUEL OIL CONSUMED WAS 2.163 GALLONS ATA COST OF $1,844. 
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RE.RAGE ~D WATER BOARD OF NEW ORL]L~gS WATER PUMPED AN]) CONSUMXD - 1996 
Numbsr of Connoctions 
8 .~ 8 :.3 105 2~6 :;9 2J,_~ 6~/3 
166 

Free, metered water to various City departments end charitable institutiors: Display Fountains Fire, Department Swishing Pools Libraries Municipal Parks and Playgrounds Police Department Schools 
Process Water Sewerage and Water Board 

Allovrance for leaks in piping fixtures, etc. 

6,329,100 13,811,200 27,032,900 3,452,900 120,629,300 465,674,100 374,894,300 128,471,300 1,140,295,100 2.22% 
880,203t200 
549,6071300 

1.~2~ 
~.Ov~ Unmetered free use, such as: extinguishment of fires, cleaning streets, flushing sewers, drains, and gutters, cleaning markets and other public buildings, under registration of me, ters, leaks in distribution system, etc. 25,188,758,100 49.14% Sold Total Water P~ed 
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S}."~ERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF N~.~q ORLEANS GALLONS METERED - PAY WATER CONSUMPTION 1996 

January February March April 
May June July August .'~ept ember October November December 
Gl.'os s Total 

IV-9 

Monthly Consumption 1,792,649,500 1,899,314,300 2,079,343,400 1,906,192,900 1,933,448,900 1,724,339,000 2,076,525,200 2,086,050,600 2,157,861,100 2,128,092,600 1,899,355,500 1,818,443,300 



SEWERAGE A~gD WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS MONTHLY W.%TER RATE COLLECTIONS - 1996 

Month January February March April May June July August September October November December 

Water Ratq & Service Ch__ar~es $ 4,475,668.44 3,834,618.18 
4,872,036.45 4,600,307.97 4,136,280.85 5,479,973.04 3,405,587.26 4._604,333.94 

Delinquent Eg~_s. $ 75,965.20 72,670.15 65,506.03 79,246.64 98,387.84 58,627.42 70,638.01 86,705.63 67,188.43 80,253.50 63,765.74 ~,949.78 

Water From Fire Hydrants Total $ 344.08 0.00 4,171.97 2,686.42 344.08 1,505.35 1,505.35 1,505.35 1,505.35 1,505.35 344.08 4f171.97 .L%~Z~ ~ 19,589.35 
SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS MONTHLY SEWERAGE RATE COLLECTIONS - 1996 

Month January February March April May June July August September october November December 

$ 4,551,977.72 3,907,288.33 5,129,452.33 4,365,002.59 4,680~599,37 3,809,734.83 4,944,179.81 4,688,518.95 4,204,974.63 5,561,731.85 3,469,697.08 4,687,455.69 

Sewerage Rate |i Service Charqei~ $ 3,199,36(;.57 2,758,87,).74 3,548,359.12 2,992,75'f.03 3,241,380.05 2,632,591].88 3,399,2513.55 3,431,813.35 2,879,953.05 3,807,45;.86 2,432,982.41 __33~201.277.18 

Delinquent 
$ 46,800.22 86,672.79 66,917.80 36,488.91 43,513.17 55,145.40 60,686.84 49,857.61 63,379.69 64,494.06 58,883.17 _43~7p7.06 

Total $ 3,246,166.79 2,845,547.53 3,615,276.92 3,029,245.94 3,284,893.22 2,687,739.28 3,459,940.39 3,481,670.96 2,943,338.74 3,871,951.92 2,491,865.58 3t245,034.24 
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TABLE I CARROLL1 ON TURBIDITIES I:tlluent UoagulaIirlg [ Reservoirs Filters (NTU) NTU) ~[~[Z'1~931 19941 19951 1996 I 19921 19931 1994J 19951 19~ 262_.~ --3gI- 1151 211 46 2.3 1.8 0.99 0.5 1.21 ~ --2.61 1.5 2,2 1 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 (~:~] 851 101 "8.11 9.7 7.2 8.7 0,14 0.27 0.14 0.12 0191 "[ABLE II CARROLLTON ALKALINITIES PARTS PER MILLION 

TABLE II A CARROLLTON HARDNESS PARTS PER MILLION 

TABLE III CARROLLTON BACTERIAL CHARACTERISTICS Coliform Group Organisms per 100 Milliters 
1996 Vlaximum Vlinimum ~,verage rotal Samples total Samples Ne#ative Total Samples Positive 

River I ffluent of Coagulating Plant Tap Distribution (1996) id Settling Reservoirs (1996) System 9,200 I 2,200 0 1 130 <10 0 0 1,827 111 0 0 364 167 362 2,252 45 362 2,250 364 I 122 0 2 
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SEWERAGE ~D WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS ComprehenI~ive Annual Financial Report Year ended December 31, 1996 
II, 

III~ 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Pension Trust Funds Balance SheE~ts Statnments of Revenue, Expenses end Changers in Fund Equity Statements c)f Cash Flows Supplementary Informat~.on Balance Sheets by Department Enterprise ~und - Schedule I Revenues and Expenses by Department Enterprise Fund - Schedule 2 Schedule of Bonds Payable - Schedule 3 Sc~hedule of Cash ]~eceipts and Disbursements - Debt Servic,~ and Debt Service Reserve Required by Bond Resolution - Schedule 4 ~squired Suppleme:~tary Informntion Pension Trust Fund - Revenues By Source and i~xpsnses by Type - Schedule 5 Required Supplementary Information Pension Trust Fund - Analysis of Funding Progress - Schedule 6 
Revenues and Expenses by Source Enterprise Fund - Last Ten Fiscal Years Capital Expenditures Enterprise Fund by Department - Last Ten Fiscal Years Property Tax Levies and Collections by the City of New Orleans - Last Ten Fiscal Years Assessed end Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property - Last Ten Fiscal Years Property Tax Rates - ~.irect and Overlapping Governments - Ntm~er of Mills Last Ten Fiscal ~ears Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt - December 31, 199{. 
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TABLE XlV Monthly Temperature (Degrees Farenheit) of the Tap Water at the Carrollton Plant 
51 53 51 65 97 53 51 59 64 64 60 51 65 67 65 64 60 77 71 74 74 72 76 75 78 82 81 79 76 77 88 88 78 78 80 87 88 81 81 81 85 87 80 81 81 66 74 77 77 77 66 63 73 70 72 55 54 66 66 66 90 91 90 88 89 48 48 44 44 54 69 67 71 73 74 
Five-Year Period 
Maximum 91 Minimum 44 Average 71 
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TABLE VII FIVE YEAR ANAl YSIS DATA (1992 - 1996) FOR NEW ORLEANS DRINKING WATER PURIF ICATION SYSTEM 
PARAMETER "~OTAL ALKALINITY (PPM AS CaCO3) TOTAL HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3)_ NONCARBONATE HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3) CALCIUM HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3) MAGNESIUM HARDNESS (F!PM AS CaC03) NEPHELOMETRIC TURBIDITY ~.N T.U~. JACKSON TLIRBIDITY (J.T_U~_ #H _CHLORIDE (PPM) FLUORIDE (F~  TOTAL DISSOLVED SOLIDS .(PP~. TOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS_(PPMJ FREE CHLORINE RESIDUAL (EPM_A_S _C.._L2) TOTAL CHLORINE RESIDUA~P_PM A~; EL2) ,~ ~ ORTHO PHOSPHATE {_PPM AS PO.4~_ ~T~ ~ (PP K,I AS P04~ SULFATE ~F'_!~M AS SO4~ ;ILICA (PPM AS Si02) qlTRATE (PF'M AS N) qlTRITE (PPM AS N} ~.OLOR/Sca e Units) ~ONDUCTIVITY (umhos/cm~ [EMPERATURE (DEG =F ) ~,LUMINUM~PPB) ~,RSENIC (PPB) ~ARIUM (PPB) ~.ADM IUM (P~ ~.HROMIUM ,'P~PPB ) lOPPER ~PF~ RON (PPB) vIERCURY (PPB) ~ELENIUM (PPBL SILVER (PPE~ ~INC (PEE} -~OTASSIUM JEP~ 5ODIUM (PPM) [OTAL TRIHALOMETHANES EP_P_B) fOTAL ORGANIC CARBON PEP~_~ 1, 2-DICHLOROETHANE [PPBJ_ CHLOROFORM (P~ CARBON TETRACHLORIDE P~ 3ROMODICHLOROMETHANE P~- B2 [ ETRACHLOROEFHENE ~_~ 3TX (Benzene, Toluene & X~,lenes}..(P_PIC)~__ [OTAL COLII:ORMS (colonies/lO0 ml~ __ tETEROTROPHIC PLATE COUNT+(coI_/I_0O ml) :E._C_ALC_O_L[FOR.MS (col onies/lO0 nDIl . __ :ECAL STREP]OCOCCI (colonies/100 ml) 

SISSIPPI RIVER FINISHED VATER ore Purifi ~'ation) (After" Purific ation) MIN AVG MAX MIN AVG 62 11~ 140 30 82 106 157 225 9O 139 112 17 47 114 21 58 75 119 167 57 103 84 5 38 87 8 36 334 8 79 150 6.02 022 19 119 7.29 7195 10.01 818 9.02 10 29 74 16 31 0.10 0.26 1 40 0.25 089 103 225 341 93 203 474 2 119 1.7 0.0 01 4.5 0.2 27 000 O.00 0.7 00 02 1.0 01 04 09 01 03 02 04 1.0 03 O5 27.1 531 77.6 261 540 86 41 59 73 32 49 36 1C 23 5.8 09 21 04 0C 01 05 00 00 2O 1C 14 10 5 56 224 395 541 268 366 ~5 6O 98 15 73 120 C 27 83 1 16 0.C 08 30 O0 O3 251 4 65 139 10 35 0C O0 10 00 00 20 0~ 01 30 00 00 270 0C 4.2 140 00 78 10 21 8 740 0.0 330 30 0.0 00 7.0 0.0 00 05 00 00 10 00 O4 00 2.0 0.C 02 00 00 00 OC 00 244 12 439 C 2O 52 2.2 34 50 24 33 69 22 43 10C 211 O0 O0 39 34 141 113 15 53 7.8 11 34 18.7 0.0 01 32 0~ 0C 00 00 36 3.4 12 7B O0 O0 18 0~ 0~ 0.0 O0 67 0~ O0 O0 18 0~ 0~ 0.0 O0 23 0C 0C <100 1634 110 0 ~ 100 7299 1700 0 11 <10 252 10 674 ..+ 
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Dedicated Ta 22,,11% 

]nter~ Incon 5.144 
1996 Revenue 

Sewer Service Charges 29.96% 

Provision for Doubtful Accounts 

Payroll Related 10.92 % 

1996 Expenses 
Provision for Amorti- 

Administration & General 9.85 % I-7 
Customer Service 2.22% 
Accounts 2.25% 



 

TABLE Xll EXTRACTS FROM TABLES IV-C AND V 20 Ys ar Period, 1976 to 1996 Inclusive Maximum, Minimum, and Average Amount of Water Treated Per Day (M.G. per 24 Hours) 
I~ MAX I 176 I 144.50 I 177 170.40 1 78 144.90 1179 165.70 I1Bo 166.80 I 131 164.50 I i32 216.40 1 33 231.70 166.71 I 135 210.04 175.77 I 1!37 137.63 I 1~38 146.38 1! }9 240.00 I 1!)o 162.50 r 1~)1 133.29 1~ )2 139.00 1c, )3 140.38 1,~ )4 128.88 1c, ~5 142.83 1,,,s 198.42 

TON AL(511'-RS MIN ,VG. MAX. I MIN. AVG. 98.20 22.70 12.21 7.00 9.38 101.70 27.10 13.00 7.00 9.61 108,10 26.30 12.08 8.00 9.86 112.60 32.40 13.63 8.00 10.54 118.30 37.10 13.50 8.00 10.09 121.70 40.50 13.00 8.13 10.7' 118.30 33.80 15.68 9.25 11.07 107.60 28.30 15.00 8.50 11.02 113.08 30.37 15.42 9.50 11.07 99.75 24.08 14.96 8.54 10.49 89.12 21.50 13.71 8.04 10.29 95.08 16.42 13.46 7.45 10.42 94.71 18.38 13.71 8.34 10.19 93.83 19.54 18.75 7.00 9.80 100.46 19.61 14.78 8.00 10.46 98.92 14.79 12.50 8.00 9.60 97.00 15.22 13.88 8.00 9.88 103.25 17.41 15.42 7.62 10.18 103.88 1 13.71 17.00 8.00 11.47 104.67 !1.40 18.14 9.00 11.55 91.59 !8.97 18.27 9.00 11.47 
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Suite 3500 One Shell !~quare New Orleans. LA 70139-3599 

April 24, 1997 
~QNFIDEN~ Board of Directors Sewerage & Water Board 625 St. Joseph Street New Orleans, Louisiana of ]~ew Orleans 70:[65 Dear Members of the Board We have audited the combined and individual fund financial statements of the Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans (the Board) for the year ended December 31, 1996, and hav~ issued our report thereon dated April 24, 1997. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Board, we considered internal corttrol in order to deterndne our auditing procedures fcr the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general-purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal control. During our audit we noted certain matters involving internal control and other operational matters that are presented for your consideration. These comments and recon~nendations, all of which have been discussed with the appropriate m~m~bers of management, are intended to improve internal control or result 5n other operating efficiencles and are listed in Appendix A to this report. Appendix B provides a status of prior year management letter con~nents. Our audit procedures are designed prix~arily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements and, therefore, may not bring to light all weaknesses in policies or procedures that n~y exist. We aim, however, to use oul knowledge of the Board's crganization gained daring our work to make eon~nents and suggestions that we hcpe will be useful to you. This report is intended fsr the information of the Board, management and the Legislative Auditor. How,:ver, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not 15m/ted. Very truly 
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NOT[-S TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



 

~EC'FI\.'[ f) !t7 J[J~t -5 f',ll 9:26 

Tricycle Races were part of the Board's United Way Fund Raiser--The H2OOOlympics. 

Central Control distributes electrical power to water, sewerage and drainage facilities throughout the cily. 
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Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily dieclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively lo~v level the risk that errors or irregul'arities in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not [De detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course Of perfo/ming their assigned functions. We noted no matters in,~olving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses as 4efined above. However, we noted other raatters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we ha~e report~ to the management of the Board in a separate letter dated April 24, 1997. This report is intended for the information of the Board, management and the St~te of Louisiana Department of Education. However, this report is a matter of public record and its d~stribution is not limited. 
Ap~:il 24, 1997 
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MAJOR INITIATIVES The Board budgeted approximately $82 million for capital improvements in 1996. In order to modernize, improve, and expand our operational capabilities, the following major projects were undertaken: 
Renovation of C B~isins at Carrollton Water Plant 
Installation of a replac~nent 42" water main in Earhart Boulevard Replacement of 30~ sewer force main in Dwyer Road Construction of Csntral Yard Warehouse Initiated installation of Sewer System SCADA - Modernization of Electrical Switch gear and Controls at Drainage Pumping Station #4 Replacement of Pines Village S.P.S. Repairs to and/or replacement of equipment throughout the power, drainage, sewerage, and water systems. In October of 1996, the board received approval for the first in an anticipated series of grants from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for planning, design, construction, and rehabilitation of the sanitary sewer system. The initial grant award is $i0 million for a threE; (3) year period, and must be matched by approximately $8.2 million in Board funds. The primary goal of the effort is to protect public health by reducing and eliminatincj (i) structural failures of gravity sewe:~ mains and sewer force mains (2) mechanical failures of sewage pumping stations and (3) high rates of infiltration and inflow. The five (5) year capital program passed by the Sewerage and Water Board in December 1996 includes $88,300,000 from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for various drainage projects. The cost of these programs will be shared 75%-25% between the Corps of Engineers and the Sewerage and Water Board, respectively. The first major project scheduled is the completion of the expansisn of Drainage Pumping Station #i. The project is budgeted for $i0,000,)00 and is scheduled for bid in the summer of 1997. FINANCIAL INFORMATION Management of the Sewerage and Water Board is responsible for designing and maintainin~ an internal control structure sufficient to safeguard the Board's assets against loss, theft or misuse and to ensure the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not 
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SEWERAGE A3D WATER BOkRD OF NEW ORLEANS ROTES TO FINANCII~L STATEMENTS Decelnber 31, 1996 and 1995 
I - ~untiqq Policies 
The major operation of the Sewerage and Water Board of Sew Orleans (the Board) is providing water, sewerage and drainage services for the City of Hew Orleans (City). 

I~ accordance with the Louisiana Revised Statutes (LRS) 33:4096 and 4121, the Board has the authority to establish the water and sewerage rates to charge to its customers. The rates are based on the actual water cons~ed end on the costs of maintenance and operation of the water and sewerage systemst including the costs of improvements and replacements. The collections of walter and sewerage rates ai:e to be used by the Board for the maintenance and olberation of the systems, the cost of! improvements, betterments, and replacementt;, and to provide for the payments of interest and principal on the bonds payable. The Board has also been given the authority to levy and collect various tax millagE~s which a~e used for the operation and maintenance of the drainage operations~ All excess revenues oollected are made available for capital development of the system. The proceeds of the rate collections slid tax millages are invested in such investments as authorized by the LRS. These investments are refl(~cted in the combined balance sheet, as "restricted aJ;sets," as they are restricted to the purposes as described above. The Board is composed of thirteen members, including the Mayor of the City, the two Councilmembers-at-Large, and one District Councilmember selected by the City Council, two memb~rs of the Soard of Liquidation and seven citizens appointed by the Mayor. The appointed members of the Board serve staggered nine year terms. The Board's accounting po3.icles conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to utilities and to governmental units. The following is a sumzmary Of the more significant policies. (A) Reportinq Enti~ 
(n) Responsibility for surpluses/deficits. The Board is solely responsible for its surpluses/deficits. In accordance with l~uisiana Revised Statutes, no other governmental uni~ is responsible for the Board's deficits or has a claim to its surpluses. The Board's operations are se~f-sustaining; revenues are generated 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOEES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
I .- 

through charges to customers taxes. Other than grants, no the Stats of ~misiana or the and dedicated property funding is received from City of New Orleans. (b) Budget Approva:L. The Board is solely responslble for reviewing, appl!ovlng and revising its budget. (c) Responsibility for Debt. The Louisiana Revised Statutes authorize the Board to issue bonds; such bonds must bear on their face s statement that they do not constitute a debt of the City. The Board is solely responslble for payments to the bondholders. No other governmental unit is required by statute to make any payments to bondholders no:~ have any payments to bondholders ever been made by al~y governmental unit, except the Board. (d) Designation of Management. The Board controls the hiring of mana!jement and employees. (e) Special Financial Relationship. The Board has no special financial relationships with any other governmental ullit. (f) Statutory Authority. The Board's statutory authority was crested by the State of Louisiana as an independent governmental ultit. Only an amendment to state statutes can change or ~|bolish the Board's authority. The Bonrd is a stand-a:Lone entity as defined by GASB Statement 14, Th_e Financial Reporting Enl;ity. The Board is a legally-separate governmental organization that doesnot have a separately elected governing body and does not meet the definitio~ of a component unit. As a result of a Louisiana Supreme Court decision on March 21, 1994, the Board was declared to be an autonomous or snlf-gov~,rnlng legal entity, legally independent of the city, state nnd other gover~aents, created and organized pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statutes 33~40";I as a board, separate and independent of the governing authorities of the city and vested with autonomous or self governing authority. }in other government can mandate actions of the Board nor impose specific financial burdens. The Board is fiscally independent to operate under its bond ~:ovenant and the Louisiana Revised Statute provisions. (B) '~ion - Fund Accounting The operations of the )Joard are accounted for in the following fund typos 
The proprietary land is used to account for the Board's ongoing operations and activities which are similar to those often found in the private ae~tor. The proprietary fund is accounted for using a flow of a3onomic resource measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets end all liabilities associated with the operatlo~ of these funds are included on the balance 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES !~O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
I - cuntina Policies fContinued 

(c) 

sheet. Fund equity is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings. The operating stet~ents present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. The Board maintains one psoprietsry fund type - the enterprise fund. The enterprise fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in e manner e~lailer to prlvste business enterprises--where the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a oontinulng basis be financed or recovered primaril~ through user oharges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incuzred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance. The presentation of the financial statements of the enterprise fund follows the for~et recommended by the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners (NARUC). The balance sheet ar~angement for a utility reflects the relative importance of the various accounts. "Property, plant and equipment" is the first major catego|'y on the asset side, and long-term capitalization categories such as fund equity ere listed first on the liability side. Current assets and current liabilities are assigned a relatively less important position in the center of the balance sheet, rather than being placed first as in the balance sheets of commercial end industrial enterprises. Fiduciary Fund Tvoe The fiduciary fund is used to account for assets held by the Board in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. The Board maintains one fiduciary fund type - the pension trust fund. The measurement focus of the pension trust fund is the same as that of the enterprise fund. The pension trust fund is used to account for the activity of the Board's employee retirement plan. The Board applies ali ~pplicable F~qB November 30, 1989 in accounting for trust fund operations unless those contradict GASB pronoxtncements. t 
pronouncements issued on or before its enterprise pronouncements fund and pension conflict with or 

The enterprise fund and thq~ pension trust fund prepare their financial statements on the accrual b~sis accounting. Unbilled utility service charges ere not recorded as manage|tent considers the effect of not recording such unbilled receivables as not material. Property taxes are recorded as revenue when oollected by the Board's agent. 
lnveatmsnt|~ are stated at cost or amortized cost, except for investments in the deferred compensation plan which are reported at market value. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CcJntinuad) 
I .- 
(E) 

n 
Inventory of supplies .Ls stated at the lower of cost or Rarket. Cost is deterlined by the first-in, first-out method. (F) Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost. The cost of additions include contiractsd work, direct labor, materials and allocable cost. Donated fixed aelmets ere rscordsd at their estIRated fair value at the date of donation. Intorest is capitalized on fixed assets acquired and/or constructed with tax e~empt debt. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method o~,er the cet~ated useful life of the asset. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation arc removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in revenue ~!or the period. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to operation:! as incurred and significant renewals and betterments are capitalized. Deduction is made for retirements resulting from renewals or betterments. Dspre(:intion on assets acquired through contributions is charged to fund equity - revenue invested in water, sewerage and drainage system. (G) Vacation and Sick Pay Vacation (annual Inavei~ and sick pay (sick leave) are accrued when earned. Annual leave is accrued at the rate of .6923 of a workday for each hi-weekly accrual period for all employees on the payroll as of December 31, 1978. ERployeee hired after that date earn leave at a rate of .5 per bi-weekly pay period. All employees receive three bonus days each year for five through nine calendar y~lars of continuous service; six bonus days each year for ten through fourteen yeare~ nine bonus days each year for fifteen through nineteen years; and, tl;elve days for twenty or more years cf continuous service. Civil Service's policy permits employees a limited amount of earned but unused annu~tl leave which will be paid to employees upon separation from the Board. The amount shall not exceed ninety days for employees hired before January 1, 1979. and forty-five days for employees hired after December 31, 1978. 

Upon separation from t~e Board, an employee can elect to convert unused sick leave for ratirlmant c:!sdlte or cash. The conversion to cash is determined by ~ rate ~anging from one day of pay for five days of leave for the 1st through 100th leave da~, to one day of pay for one day of leave for ell days in excess of the 400th leave day. The total liability for uncoverted sick leave as December 31,1996 is approximately $13,700,000. Thee mount included in the balance sheet as of Dscembnr 31, 1996 is $9,945,470 which represents the converted sick leave because virtually all employees convert their sick 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FIRANC]AL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
1 - 
leave to cash. The ~aounts for oouponsated absences include the salary cost as well as cartels salary r,|leted costs, such as the Board's share of ao~lal ee=urlty e~snee. 
The Board funds the accrued pension cost for its contributory pension plan which covers substantially ell employees. Annual costs are actuerlally cGaputed using the entry a!|e normal coat method. 

Although not presently financed by user charges related to direct usage, the usual revenue source for a~ enterprise fund activity, the financing by dedicated nillages or propllrties serviced, end the unique character of the services provided by the dr;linage system of the City, require enterprise fund accounting to provide meaningful measurement of cost of sorvloos end capital maintenance of the system. Addltlonslly, because of the peculiar geography of the City, the provision .f drainage service is essential for the operation of water end sewerage systems. The dzelnage systluloperatlon and maintenance expenses include costs dir;sctly associated with the provision Of drainage services ass well as substantial allocated costs resulting from utilization of common resources such as edminlstratJve services, maintenance, equil~aent, end power gsnsratlon and transmission. (~) The Board Is self-insured for general liability, worker's c~ponsation, unemployment compensation and hospitalization benefits and cla/is. The accrued liability for the various types of claims represents an estimate by nLnegement of the eventual loss on the claims arising prior to year-end, including claims incurred and not yst reported. 
Contributions from dsvelopq|rs end others, end receipts of Federal, Beats and City grants for acquisitioxL of property, plant and equipment are recorded as contributed capital in fund equity. (I,) Cc,sts related to issuing b,)nds are capitalized and amortized based upon the me, thods used to epproximst;s the interest method over the llfe of the bonds. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS IOI'ES TO FINANCIAL STACk)lEfTS (Continued) 
1 .- 
Beginning with fiscal ],ears in 1994 and thereafter, gains and losses associated with refundings and advance refundings are being deferred and amortized based upon th,m methods used to approximate the interest method over the life of the new bonds or the remaining term on any refunded bond, whichever is shorter. (s) S t Total ool~ns on the Ccmblned Statements are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in thel;e columns do nol; present financlal position, results of operations, or cash flows, in confcrmlty with generally accepted accounting principles. Such data is not: compazable to a consolidation since interfund eliminations have not been made. 
For puz~oses of the statement of cash flows, only cash on hand and on deposit at financial institutions are considered to be cash equivalents. Certificates of deposits, treasury bills and other securities are considered investments. (o) SIlICa Certain 1995 expenses have been reclassified to conform with the 1996 presentation. 2 - Cash and Investments The following are the :omponents of the Board's cash and investments at Decembler 31, 1996s Unrestricted Restricted Total Casht Enterprise fund Pension trust fund $ 1,269,001 6,180 1,275,18] Ce~rtlflcates of deposit Deferred col~ensation mutual fund Xnvestments~ Enterprise fund Pension trust fund 108,192,876 ~..109,r468t05~ U~restricted Cash C(~rtificate of deposits Total carrying aatount of deposits 

$ 1,275,181 S 1,2~5,18~ 
]1-17 

217,115 $ 1,486,116 6,180 217,115 1,492,296 
98,054,931 98,054,931 562,689 562,689 6,191,337 ~105t026t072 Restricted $ 217,115 98,054,931 

6,191,337 108,192,876 ~214r494t129 Total $ 1,492,296 98,054,931 991547r227 



II-8 



Peat Manwick LLP Suite 3500 One Shell 3quare New Orlearls. LA 701.'- 9-3599 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance 
The Members of the Sewerage and Water Board cf New Orleans: 
We have audited the finanDial statements of the Sewerage and Water Board o~ New Orleans (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated April 24, 1997. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally standards and ~l~/hment 2~tlnQ St~ issued by the accepted auditing Comptroller Genera2 of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonab]e assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. Compliance with laws, rec'ulations, contracts, and grants applicable to the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Board. As part of obtaining reasonable assulance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the Board's compliance with certain provisions of law~., regulations, contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our audit of the financial statements was not to provide a;~ opinion on overall compliance with such provisions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of Our tests disclosed required to be reported herein under no instances of noncompliance that are This report is intended for the information of the Board, management and the State of Louisiana Depart~*ent of Education. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
~ril 24, 1997 



AS noted in prior year letters, the Board has completed Phase I of its fixed asset project, has developed a Fixed Asset Department and has compiled various records. Because of fede::al and state compl~ance provisions, we reconm~end that the Board develop a work plan to substantially complete this project by the end of 1997. Use of sc.ftware can serve as an invaluable tool to assist in this effort. Use of New Software The first year to test and begin use of the new general ledger, purchasing and payroll software packages ~as 1996. One of the key features of the general ledger package was the })udgetary control that could be used to ensure Department compliance witi% budgeted funds. While this control was not consistently used in 1996, as the Board becomes more familiar with the software system and consid(~ring its declining net income position, management should re-consider utilization of the software's budget controls. In addition, disbursements Board's chart revisions are 
during our testwork on disbursements, we noted a few which were ~.ncorrectly coded. Departments should review the of accounts for completeness and ease of use and, if budget needed to fund expenses, they should be requested timely. Prior ~ear Con~nents The status of prior year comments are included in Appendix B 



 

D~I~2_Q~ I T I ON P]~ OR YEAR MANAGEMENT RESPQ~ STATUS 
The Board has several petty Concur Implemented cash accounts ranging in amounts from $50 to $20,0(0. To ensure the proper pet ty cash documentation ~ nd t ransact ions, perio~[ic reviews should be conducted by the accounting department of the bar~ statements ~Lnd reconciling items for th~se petty cash accounts. Quarterly, copies of b~nk statements should be forwarded by the ~-~espect:.ve departments to accounting J~or review and verification. ~ment s The investments of the Concur Implemented enterprise fund are under the control of the Investm,~nt Coordinator. The Coordina'~or makes investment declsio:%s, reviews collateral requirements, initiates '&he purchases or sales of investments, and receives :he safekeeping notices from the banks. Any differences sre investigated by the Coordinator. For the pension trust fund, the Coordinator deposits contributions and transfers funds for payroll and refund disbursements. With the changes in the financial systems, previous cbecks and balances in this area have been reduced. To better protect its Coordinator, as well as to ~intsin adequate contrclst 

A~p~ n ~iz D 
CO~ENT DISPOSITION 

Procedures are in process of being finalized. 

Periodic recon~ ciliations are being performed. 



PRIOR YEAR 
management should review the cu).-rent processes and modify procedures to maximi ~e safeguard and detection controls. M~,~oll~n~nu~ Receivables 

MANAGEMENT RESPQh[~ STATUS 

The Board has a substantial Concur Implemented amount of miscellaneoas receivables. While bills are being issued regularly, collection efforts should De reviewed to better ensure the timeliness of payments. Internal reporting of the aging end composition of these receivables to the Finance Administrator should also be performed. 

~Ip~ndix BjCO~~L~ 
COMMENT DISPOSITION 

Procedures have been reviewed and have been or in process of being updated. 

Concur Noted Not applicable The management of the Board has successfully installed two new major systems in the last twelve months. While other phases to the systems will be ~plemented in the next few months, we encourage and support management's efforts to maxiraize its usage of the new system, particularly in generating budget ~nd financial neports~ ~deral Ful~ The management of the Scard Concur Implemented anticipates receiving ~ub- stantial federal financial a~sistance in I996 and 8~sequent years. The 
Position has been created and personnel have attended training. 



establishment of a grant accountant and the attendance of employees nt specific training senuina~:s reflects the proactivene~s of management and the:se efforts are cormnended. As part of these efforts, the Board should also review and update policies and procedures as appropriat,-~, and compile the necessa:ry pokicies and procedures in one central location. ~d ARset Pr~Sect 

MANAGEMENT RE ~~~DBS~ 
Appendix~cD~t~ 
COS~ENT DISPOSITION 

We understand that the Board Concur Repeated Long-term project has recently completed Phase I of its records. Because of the future receipt by the Board of federal funds and to be in compliance with state requirementst we re~ormnend that the Board initiate the next phase of the project. As required by State Lawt fixed asset records should be maintained for land, buildings, other improvement.sr equipmentt and other similar items and shall include inforrmat~on such as the date of purchase, initial cost (or an estimate thereof, dis~o- sltions, the pu):pose of disposition, recipient of the disposed property, serial numbers, location, depreciable life, acctmLu- lated depreciation ~nd other related data. 



KPMG Peat Marwick [..LP Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orfeons. LA 70139-3599 

April 24, 1997 
The Members of the Sewerage and Water Finance Cormnit tee Board of New Orleans 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996, and have issued a report thereon dated April 24, 1997. Under generally accepted auditing standards, we are providing you with the attached information related to the conduct of our audit. This inform~ition is intended solely for the use ~Lnagement and should not be used for any other of the Board of Directors and purpose. Very truly yours, 



SEWERAGE & WATER BOAR~ OF NEW ORLEANS DECEMBER 31, 1996 
Our Responsibility Undan Genara11.y Accepted Auditing Standards Oul responsibility under g~:nerally accepted auditing standards is to express an opinion on the general purpose financial statements of Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans (the B~ard) and the individual fund financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995 based on our audit. In carrying out this responsibility, we assessed the risk that the financial statements s~y contain a material misstate~entt either intentional or unintentional, and designed and conducted our audit to provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance of detecting misstatements that are material to the financial statements. In addition, we considered the internal control structure of the Board to gain a basic understanding of the accounting syste~ in order to design an effective and efficient audit approach, although not for the purpose of providing specific assurance on the internal control structure. Significant Accounting Policies The significant accounting policies used by the Board are described in the "S~muuary of Significant Accounting Policies" note to the financial statements. We noted no transactions el~ered into by the Board during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. Management Judgmaents and Accounting Estimates Accounting estimates are ar integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based upon smnagement' s current judgments. Those judgments are normally b~sed on knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of the significance of the financial statements and because of the possibility that future ~vents affecting them may differ markedly from management's current jud~nents. We considered the calculation of claim provisions and liabilities to be estimates that are significant due to the amount of ~nagementts est~x~ate. Based on the testwork performed, we conclude that management's estimate appears reasonable at December 31, 1996. Siffni ficant Audit Ad ju~Jtmant s We proposed no significant audit adjustments to the financial statements that could, in our judgment, ~ither individually or in the aggregate, have a significant effect on the Board's financial reporting process. We have recorded several entries~ provision for claims, provision for doubtful accounts, etc., which are entries consistent with the prior year. 



MARC H. MORIAL, President HENR Y A. DILLON, JR., I Yesident Pqo-Tem 
HAROLD J. GOItlt4AIV Executive Director 

Board OF NEW ORLEANS 625 ST. JOSEPH STREET NEW ORLEANS, LA., 70165 ~ 585-2190 April 24, 1997 
TO: THE HONORABLE PRESIDENT AND MEMBERS OF THE SEWERAGE ANDWATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEAN~ 
We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans for the year ended December 31, 1996. Respcnsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests solel~{ with the Sewerage and Water Board. It is our belief that the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects and is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the Board's Enterprise and Pension Trust Funds. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an ultderstanding of the Sewerage and Water Board's financial activities have been included. The Comprehensive ~nual Financial Report is presented in four (4) major sections: Introdu~tory, Financial, Statistical and Supplemental. The Introductory Section includes the transmittal letter and listings of the officers, members, and committees of the Board of Directors. This section also includes the Board's organizational chart and a reproduction of the 1995 Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting a~rarded by the Government Finance Officers Association. The Financial Section includes the independent auditors" report, along with the general purpose financial statements and the accompanying notes. The combined and individual fund statements for the Enterprise and Pension Trust Funds are included. The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally in a multi-year presentation. Additional information relative to the Sewerage and Water Board's operations is included in a Supplemental Section. The Sewerage and Water Board meets the criteria for classification as an "other stand-alone government" as described in Governmenta~ Accounting Standards Bcard Statement No. 14. The reporting entity includes the Enterprise :Fund and the Pension Trust Fund. The Enterprise Fund is con~osed of three (3) independent systems: Water, Sewerage and Drainage. 

]-! Membore of ~e Bo4wd: TROY A. CARTER * HENRY A, DILL ~)N, JR. ~ BENJAMIN L, EDWARDS, SR. ~ NORMAN N. FRANCIS ~ CAROL YN J. HARRIS ~ WILLIAM AV HOL 7ON, JR c~r~c[.z J~P/F[~ - ~TH~'R/~I'RZ~~J~O A4At~4ZDO ~ AMRCH. MORIAI ~ JJ4ME~M SINGLETON ~ STAFFORDR, 7UREAUD, SR, ~ PEGGYWILSON * MAR K 2[RVIGON 



G Peat Marwick L.LP Suite 3500 One Shell ',;quare New Orleans. LA 70139 3599 

Independent Report on the Internal Control Financial Statement l.~v~] 
Tbe Members of the Board Sewerage and Water Board oE New Orleans: 
We have audited the financial statements of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated April 24, 1997. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally standards and ~Dment Asditina S~dards issued by the accepted auditing Comptroller Genera/ of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material ntlsstatement. The management of the Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining an irLternal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by n~nagement ~tre required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internaZ, control structure policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transaetions are executed in accordance with manage~ent's authorization and recorded properly to perm/t the preparation of financial statemer~s in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors or irregularities may nevertheless Occur and not be detected. Also, projeet:Lon of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in condltions er that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures n~y deteriorate. In planning and pezfolnm/ng our audit of the financial statements of the Board for the year ended Deeen~)er 31, 1996, we obtained an understanding of the internal control structure. With respect to the internal control structure, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and proeedures and whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financ~al statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control structure:. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Member F~rm Ol 



 

The Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans is a political subdivision created in 1899 by Louisiana State Statutes. The Board is charged with construction, operation, and maintenance of Water, Sewerage and Drainage Systems for the City of New Orleans. By agreement, approximately 2550 acres of adjourning Jefferson Parish is served by the Board's drainage facilities for which Jefferson Parish pays its pro rata share of expenses. In addition, the Board provides sewerage services to Jefferson Parish businesses3, the majority of which are restaurants, located, in the West End neighborhood near the Lakefront and water service to the Plaquemines Parish Industrial Park. The Sewerage and Water Board was established as a "special board" operating independently of City government. The Mayor of New Orleans serves as the President of the Board of Directors whick~ is composed of three (3) representatives of the City Council, two (2) representatives of the Board of Liquidation, City Debt and seven (7) appointees as designated by the State statutes. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK The Board's service a~ea includes the Civil Parish of Orleans in the st~Lte of Louisiana and covers 364 square miles. Based on the 1990 census, the population of O:~leans Parish was 498,938. Major industries includ(.~ tourism, oil end ga~I, transportation, health and other services such as legal, education, and entertainment. According to the January 1997 issue of the Metropolitan Report New Orleans Area (UN0 Report), published by the University of New Orleans, the New Orleans metropolitan area experienced "net outmigrat:Lon" of over 173,000 residents between 1982 and 1995. This means that the number of residents moving out of the metropolitan area during those years has exceeded the "natural increase" in population (births less deaths) . This phenomenon has occurred thirteen (13) straight yea:~s and has reduced the Board's customer and revenue base. The UNO Report projects slow employment growth in metropolitan New Orleans over the next two (2) years. Employment in health services, which had been a consistert growth sector in the New Orleans economy since 1976, experienced a loss of 1,170 jobs from the first to second quarter of 1996 due largely to mergers and consolidations within the sector. The oil and gas industry continues to climb and generate increased blue-collar opportunities. Even that, however, could cause further displacement of Orleans parish residents if they relocate to oil patch parishes on the Gulf of Mexico. Convention bookings set all-time records in both the first a~d second quarters of 1996, and hosting Super Bowl XXXI in January 1997 c'ot the tourism industry off to a great start this year. 



SEWER%GE AND WATER BOARD OF HEW ORLEANS IS 96 ACTUAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

~L18 453 463 466 471 472 
~'--,-P- t 511 520 !535 !537 !546 550 
600 800 

Normal Extamlions & Replacements Improvements to Metairie Relief Canal Sto~mwater M~magement Plan Louisiana Aw,. Pipeline C.O.E. Drainalge Study Tchoupitoulal; Corridor 
$ 157,453.74 325,590.45 63,522.66 56,676.88 722,350.47 821,068.85 

TOTAL DI%ltIIIAIZ r'~WiT_q ~ 2,146,663.05 
Rorlaal Exten~;ions & Rep./Stations Suction Canal Drainage Pumping Station #19 Drainage puml)ing Station #6 Improvements Expansion of Drainage Pumping Station #11 DPS #4 West Additions to Drainage Pumping Station #I TOT&L DRAIHAt~ PUNPIH~ STJLTIONS Drainage Share of Power Projects Drainage Share of General Budget Items 

$ 1,174,545.80 155,295.30 1,907,957.38 325,186.97 22,894.58 __ 988t292.11 
555,564.48 2,833,761.70 

IOTEz These figures do not include proration of interest expense. 
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TABLE Xl 1996 ANALYSIS DATA FOR NE W ORLEANS DRINKING WATER PURIFICATION SYSTEM 
PARAMETFR i 0 i AL ALKALINITY (PPM AS CaCO3) TOTAL HARDNESS (PPM AS (',RCC~a~ NONCARBONATEHARDNESS CALCIUM HARDNESS(PPMAS CaCO3 MAGNESIUM HARDNESS(PPIdAS ~Af NEPHEI_OMETRIC TURBIDITY IN.T.U JACKSON TURBIDITY (J.T.U3 " pH C, HLORIDE (PPM) FLUORIDE (PPM) [OTAL IDISSOLVED SOLIDS (F'PM~ 10TAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS (PPM~ =REE CHLORINE RESIDUAL CPPM As (" FOTAL CHLORINE RESIDUAL (PPM AS ~,'IMONIA (PPM AS N) DRTHO PHOSPHATE (PPM AS PO4~ TOTAL PHOSPHATE (PPM AS PO4~ SULFATE (PPM AS SO4"~ SILICA (PPM AS Si02) NiTRATI- (PPM AS I~ NITRITE (PPM AS N) COLOR (Scale Units) CONDUCTIVITY (umhos/cm~ 1 EMPEF-,~TURE (DEG. F.~ ~,LUMINUM (PPB) ~,RSENIC (PPB) ~ARIUM (PPB) CADMIUM (PPB) -CHROMIUM (PPB) COPPER(PPB) ~L LEAD (PPB) MERCURY(PPB) SELENIUM (PPB) SILVER (PPB) ZINC (PPB) POTASSIUM (PPM) _ SODIUM (PPM) I OTAL TRIHALOMETHANES fPPB~ 10TAL ORGANIC CARBON (PPM'=- ,2-OICHLOROETHANE(PPB~ CHLOROFORM (ppF~ .CARBON TETRACHI_ORIDE fPPR~ BROMODICHLOROME THAN[= 115I5 R ~ TETRACHLOROETHENE (PPB'= BTX (Benzene, Toluene & Xylenes) (PPB) TOTAL COLIFORMS ~olonies/1-0-() ml) HETEROTROPHIC PLATE COUNT d FECAL C(DLIFORMS (colonies/10o ml~ FECAL S'FREPTOCOCCI (colgni~.=_F/100 ml BERYRIUM (PPB) VIANGANIESE (PPB) ~,NTIMONY (PPB) THALLIUM (PPB) 

Purification) (After Purification MIN AVG MAX MIN A~/G 207 86 153 06 32 75 15 15 19 
154 19E 126 43 73 17 0.08 
51 114 107 136 47 76 11; 03) 81 262 85 121 0.2: 8.44 7.77 8.05 9.48 8.18 8.8' /Z ~tU 38 74 24 3! 0.4 0.1 0.25 1.40 0.64 0.81 329 168 233 341 16~ 23" 285 65 127 -- -- _ 0 0 0 1.70 C 0.1( 0 0 N ~. ~N n "~n "J nt 

u.Lo U,l~ U.lY 0.33 0.13 0.24 15 10 14 10 5 5 571 224 377 541 268 381 84 4C 65 90 4El 71 203 C 40 43 C 2 0 0.3 1 0 0.0 _153 4 59 139 2 46 1 .O O.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 
2 23 446 0 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O,O 1 0 O.C C 0 0 0 0 (3 95 4.1 51 0.3 
1 17 172 0 16 2.6 3.3 3.7 2.6 3.2 12 25 43 10.0 23 O.C 0.0 35.4 5.C 15.3 5.9 2.4 4.7 3.9 1 .-q 3.1 2.1 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.O 0.1 1.4 0.0 0.0 32.2 4.0 12.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 O.C 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.C 5.7 0.7 2.2 0.0 0.9 0.0 O,O O,g 0.0 0,0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 130 0 0 2000 750 6300 350 108C 10 230 -- 0 (] 6800 10 940 O 0 0 8 0 3 0 9 19 0 1 0 0 4 3 O 4 

IV-22 o Ol o o ol o 



 

We also wish to thank the members of the Board for their interest and support in our efforts to achi(~ve greater fiscal efficiency and accountability. 

Executive Director 
David M. Soublet Utility Financial Administrator 



 

Risk ManagEment: The Sewerage and Water Board is self-insured for hospitalization, workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, and general liability losses and claims. Increased focus on case management of long term workers' com~ensation claims has been implemented with the expectation of payment reductions via application of cost offsets and increased settlement activity. On April 12, 1997, ~i fire at the Sewerage and Drainage Pumping Station caused serious structural and equipment damage. Preliminary estimates of the damage are approximately $1.5-2.0 million. Successful repairs have been made to restore pumping operations, but it will take an estimated six (6) months to repair structural and electrical damage to the facility itself. Other Information: State Statutes and covenants governing outstanding bond issues require an annual audit of the Board's financial records by independent certified public accountants. The accounting firm of KPMG Peat Marwick LLP and its subcontractor, Bruno and Tervalon CPA's, were selected by the Board. 
The independent auditors' report on the general purpose financial statements and individual:fund statements are included in the Financial Section of the report. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awardedia Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to th~ Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an 8asily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual report whose contents conform to program standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requiremsnts. 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one (i) year only. The Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans has received a Certificate of Achievement for the last fourteen (14) consecutive years. We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certification of Achievement Program requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA. 
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absolute:, assurance that theirs goals are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: i l) the cost of internal controls should not exceed the benefits expected to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits require the exe~cise of judgement by management. The Enterprise Fund's ~ater and Sewerage Systems are financed by user fess. The unique characteristics of the services provided by the Drainage System of New Orl~ans requires the use of Enterprise Fund accounting in order to obtain a meaningful measure of the cost of providing the services and capital maintenance. The Drainage System is financed by revenues from the three (3) mill, six (6) mill and nine (9) mill ad valorem taxes which are restricted exclusively for drainage services. Budgetary Control[: The Sewerage and Water Board maintains an internal budgetary control through the preparation and monitoring of an annual operating and capital budget for the Water, Sewerage, and Drainage funds. Monthly bud(~et reports are provided to department level managers to assist them in their fiscal responsibilities. General ~erations: There was essentially no change in operating revenues from 1.995 to 1996 (0.3% increase) due to a static customer base and an ~mchanged rate structure. An operating expense increase of 8.8% from 1995 to 1996 can be attributed primarily to increased provision for self-insurance claims (32.6~), transmission and distribution (14.0%), power and pumping (13.5%), and maintenance of general plant (13.3%). The increase in operational areas reflects increased gas costs and additional work efforts to ~tddress critical network repair needs. The increase in the provision foT claims varies annually based on the number of claims, lawsuits, and worlcers' compensation cases. A graphic summary of the Enterprise Fund revenues and expenses is presented immediately after this transmittal lett~r. P~nsion Trust Fund Operations: The contributions to the Pension Trust Fund are based on annual actuarial valuations. The Sewerage and Water Board continues to fund the paydown of the total unfunded liability over a seven (7) ~rear period. Debt Administration: The Board of Liquidation, City Debt has responsibility for the administration of the Board's debt. Drainage debt service payments are supported by ad valorem tax collections, while user fees are used to provide debt service for the Water System's bonds. The Sewerage and Water Board's bonds outstanding as of December 31, 1996 totaled $26,290,000. Cash Management: Casi~ temporarily idle in the Enterprise Fund during the year was invested in commercial bank certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, and U.S. Treasury Bills. Investment income on these idle funds was $6,729,404. 



CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS Year 2000 Issues 
~pg~D di x 

Entities throughout the United State~I have addressed or are in the process of addressing the Year 2000 challenge. It has been estimated that it will cost on average well over one dollar per line of executable code to correct the Year 2000 problem; this eatizmste factors in not only the cost of assessing the scc~e of the problem but implementing the program chan~es and perform/ng progranmuing testing. The Gartner Group estimates that it may require one person a year to correct l~0,000 lines of code. The Board has in-house dev~loped software as well as commercial packages. To ensure that the Board is r~ady for the year 2000, that internal services (such as payroll, compensated absences, pension information, network monitoring) and external services (such as customer billings and external reporting) continue smoothly on January I, 2000, the Board, through its Inforraation Systems Computer Center, should review each system in order of significance and document how the year 2000 has been or will be addressed. Specific steps may in.~lude: 
Identifying a project team wlth defined responsibilities; Surveying the org~nizat ion to dot e rntine applications that require conversion ; Creating an inventcry of afflicted software; Assessing and updating the processing enviror~nent -- hardware, software, release levels and computing capacity; Reviewing conversion options that include rewrite, renovate oz replace; Developing a strat~gy for dealing with vendor-written software; Breaking the project into logical conversion units; Developing a testing plan, and Reviewing and updating software tools. Automating Manual Processes With the acquisition of the AMS software and related modules in 1995, several modules to A/MS are available to the Board which may assist the Board i~ creating or identifying increased areas of efficiency, such as investments~cash ~nagem~ntt inventory, and fixed assets. One are~ recormnended as a priority is the fixed asset module. 



Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements Our responsibility for other information in documents financial statement~ and our report: thereon does contalning not extend the Board's beyond the financial information identified in our report, and we have no obligation to perform any procedures to corroborate other inforraatio~: contained ~h these documents. We have read th~ other inforraation included in the Board&-J annual report and noted no matters that came to our attention that could cause us to believe that such information, or its manner of presentationr was materially inconsistent with the infom~tion, or manner of its presentation, appearing in the financial statements. Disagreements With Management There were no disagreemenl=s with ~nagement on financial accounting and reporting ~itters which, if not satisfactorily resolved, would have caused a modification of our report on the Board's 1996 financial statements. Consultation With Other Accountants To the best of our knowledge, management has not consulted with or obtained an opinion, written or oral, from other independent accountants during the past year which were subject to =he requirements of Statement on Auditing Standards No. 50, "Reporting On the ~plication of Accounting Principles." Majlor Issues Discussed 'Rith Management Prior to Retention There have been no major issues discussed with management prior to our retention as your auditors. DifficultiE~s Encountered in Performing the Audit We encountered no difficulties in dealing with manageraent in perfornLing oul audit. Total Fees We have met the terms of our agreement with you regarding the sharing of fees between our firms. 
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SEWERAGE AND HATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS BALANCE SHEETS (Continued) ENTERPRISE FUND 
,'s l~nnd equity t Contributed capital Retained earningn-revemte invested in water, se~reraga and drainage syst~: Property, plant enc| equipment ReServed for napit|~l pro~ects Relnrved fo]: bond c|@bt service Total retained earnin~Is- revenue invested rq,served by bond covenants nnd rea;tricted by Loui:liena Revised Statutes Total fund equity Long-tex~ liabilitles: Claims payable Bonds payable (net of current maturities) Deferred compensation Current liabilities (painabla from current assets): Accounts payable Due to City of Hew 3rlaans Retainers and estimates payable Due to pension trust fund Accrued salaries Accrued vacation an~ sick pay Clalms payable Other liabilities 

Current liabilities (payable fronL restricted assets)! Accrued interest Bonds payable Accounts payable Retainers end estinates payable Customer deposits 
Total current liabilities Total liabilities Total fund equity and liabilities 

1996 
q130r793,538 
671,251,982 66,386,129 10,746,442 
748,384,553 879,178,091 

649,191,079 81,947,238 I0,785,766 

5,490,291 4,377,228 16,780,000 562e689 22,832,980 
6,419,767 238,100 2,351,300 140,052 1,069,697 9,945,470 9,344,971 __ I17n588 
171,210 9,510,000 48,764 4,953,221 

26,290,000 274,428 30m941r656 
5,465 338 3,343 59 843 
140 580 nil 173 969 9,502,147 11,617,339 466,145 31,636,004 
225,525 9,080,000 1,519 713,052 41671,170 14,683,195 14t6911266 44,310,140 ... 46w3271270 67r1431120 77r268,926 ~946f3211211 ~949.963,4~1 See ecocapeny notes to financial statements, 
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SEWERAGE kND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES ENTERPRISE FUND Yuars ended December 31, 1996 and 1995 

Operating revenues z Sales of water and delinqulJnt fees Sewerage service charges Three-mill tax Six-mill tax Nine-mill tax plumbing inspection and li,~ense fee Total operating :~evenues Operating expensesl Power and pumping Treatment Transmission and dlstributLon Customer accounts Customer service Administration and general Payroll related Maintenancn of general pla:at Depraclaticn Amortization Provision for doubtful accounts Provision for claims Total operating 8xpenses Nat operating revenue Non-operating revenues (expense)s Ad valorem taxes - two mill tax Interest income Other revenue In, terser expense 

1996 
12,438,699 212,332 122,228,222 

22,259,260 13,584,556 10,154,890 24,943,362 155,013 1,185,345 5~120t501 
26,973 
17,676 6,729,404 1,930,732 (2,244,315) Total non-.operating revenues 61433,497 

1995 
$ 54,162,872 39,362,297 7,973,558 8,073,404 12,097,348 221,374 

112,325,328 9,565,525 
94,551 7,813,226 2,091,070 

Revenue invested in water, sewerage and drainage system property, plant and equipment 6,460,470 16,729,442 Ret~tined earnlngs-revenue invested in warE,r, sewerage and drainage eyeteml BElginnlng of year End of year See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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SEWERAGE #JRD WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
ENTERPRISE FUND Tears ended December 31, 1996 and 1995 

Cash flows from operating antivitiees Cash received fromL custosere lbropnrty taxes received Cash payments tc euppliexs for goods and services Cash peynants to employees for services Other revenues Net oesh provided by operating activities Cash flows fr~~ noncapital activities-proceeds from 

1996 
$ 92,108,377 29,153,246 (44,792,261) (47,890,901) .. lf930,732 30t509~193 fgnancing property taxes 17,676 Cash flows from capital and :~eleted financing activities: Acquisition and construction of capital assets (43,513,691) Principal payments on bonds payable (9,080,000) Interest paid on bonds p~Lyable (2,298,630) Capltal contributed by dq~velopers, federal nnd state gran~:s 521t396 Net (:ash used for na])ital end related financing activities (54t370,925) Cash flows from inventing nc~ivitles: Payments for purchase cf investments (286,632,219) Proceeds from maturities Of investments 303,810,818 Interest cn investments 6m856w578 Nat cash prcvlded by investing nctivlties Met increase (decrease) in cash Caeh at the beginning of the year Cask, at the end of the year Reconciliation of cash and restrlcted C|~sh Current assets - cash Restricted assets; - cas~ (note 2) Total cash (note 2) 

.1995 
$ 93,037,991 27,930,886 (39,100,655) (45,596,682) 2fO91fO?O 
38f362,610 
94,551 
(33,331,272) (8,580,000) (2,885,552) 
(283,349,942) 281,680,226 7.5511430 

2410351177 , 5r881t714 191,121 (59,754) 112941995 lt486;116 

(Continued) 

1140 

$1,269,001 217,115 ~i,4.6,116 

1.354f749 . I1294f995 
$1,074,342 220,653 ~lf294f995 



SEWERAGE ~D HATER BOARD OF NEW ORLE&NS E~TATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (Continued) ENTERPRISE FUnD 
Reconcillatlcn of net operat;Lng revenue to net cash providi~d by operating activities for the enterprise fund is as foll,)wsl Net operating revenue Add| Other revenue 
Adj~Latments to reconcile net Ope~'atlng revenue to nat cash provided by operating activitlesz ~mpreciaticn Provision for claims |Provision for doubtful accounts ]~ortlzation ):acreage in customer and other receivables iIlncrease) decrease in tExes receivable ~ncrease in inventory Decrease in prepaid expeltses Increase in accounts pay~Lble Increase in accrued sala]~les and accrued vacation alkd sick pay Decrease in other llabil:Lties Net cash provided by ~)erating activities 

1996 
$ 26,973 1,9300732 $ 9,565,525 2,091r070 1,957,705 11,656,595 

(1,012,993) ( 646,896) 
669,051 
S30.509 I~93 

277,584 (921,233) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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SEWERAGE AN~) WATER BOAR/) OF NEW ORLEANS BALANCE S~[EETS |~ENSION TRUST FUND EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM FUND Decez~er 31, 1996 and 1995 

ASSETS 
Cash Investments, at cost (market valu.ex $120,499,589, 1996 a~d $106,194,612, 1995) Receivables! Inte, rest Miscellaneous Due from enterprise fund Total assets 
Liabi]~itiesz DROP participants Fund balancez Reserved for employee contributions - annuity savings account Reserved for employer contributions - pension at~cumulation account Reserved for membership annuities - annuity reserve a.~count Total fu.nd balance Total liabilities and fund balance 

1996 1995 
$ 6,180 $ 6,369 
108,192,876 84,372,355 752,508 31,408 .- 140,05_22 

-- 160,90_55 

815,204 22,646 59,173 

$ 13,044,924 $12,060,092 
45,029,565 36,364,076 
_ 50,8871630 1_08,962,119 
~109,123,024 

461851r579 95t275t747 
See accompanying notes 1:o financial statements. 



 



SEWERAGE AND H&TER BOARD OF' NEW ORLEANS STA:~KMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
F~4PLOYEHS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM FUND Years ende~ December 3], 1996 and 1995 

Cash flows from operating activities: Employer contributions Employee contribution Bene~fits and refunds paid to p~rticipante; 
1996 
$ 5,678,507 1,463,218 __ (5,7044~858) Net cash provided by operating activities .-- 1,437,267 Cash flows from investing activities: Payments for purchase of investments Pro~:aeds from maturities of investments Investment income received 
( 92,824,230) 79,022,439 _ 12~364,335 

1995 
$ 5,188,055 1,395,149 (5,733,411) 849,793 
(102,652,573) 92,952,578 8,850,801 Net cash used in investing activities - (I,437,456) (849,194) Net increase (decrease) in ca~;h (189) Cash at the beginning of the ],ear ___6j369 Cash ,at the end of the year Reconciliation of net operating revenue to net cash provide(| by operating activities for th~ pension trust fund iS as follows: Net operating revenue 13,686,372 Less interest income receiv, sd, included in investing activities 12,317,259 1,369,113 

599 .. 5,770 

$ 9,923,385 9,051,116 872,269 Adjustment~ to reconcile net operating revenue to net cash provided by operating actlvitiesz Increase In other receivables (8,762) (4,125) Increase in due from enterprise fund and contributions Increase in DROP liabilities, excluding interest Net (:ash provided by operating activities 
(80,880) (18,351) 1577~!9696 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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PENSI[ON TRUST FUND Trust and Agency funds are used to account for assets held by a government in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organi:,.ations, other gov- ernments and/or other funds. Pension Trust Fuods are used to account for public employee retirement systems (PERS). The Pension Trust Fund p:ovides retirement, disability and survivor annuities to ~.qigible employees 



SEI~ERAGE AED HATER BOARD OF NEW O~S NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
4 - tent ( Con t .i_n__u e d_ d--I 

1996 
Property, plant and *quipaent in services Real estate rights $ 3,582,588 PoWer and pumping stations : Buildings 92,450,019 Machinery 88,258,646 Canals 186,416,286 8ub-surfa~:e drain 8,574,174 PoWer transmission 10,683,528 General plant items 32,397,324 Buildings 2,584_~271 

$ 3,582,588 85,230,739 76,936,470 186,257,943 8,756,790 10,224,992 28,629,4?6 -- 2,584,271 Total property, plant and equipment in service 424,946,836 402,203,269 Add: property, plant and equipment in progress 25,972_~15_!] Total property, plant and equipment 450,918,987 444,026,992 E~SS: accumulated depreciation 90,812~22__q0 __ 82,142a972 Rat property, plant and equipment - drainage department 360,106~76_~7 
Total property, plant and equi|ment I, 130,304,414 1,092,62 4,022 IMSa: aooululeted depreciation ~let property, plant and equipment - all departments 

57 Years 40 Yearn 100 Years 75 Years 50 Years 12 Years 25 Years 

Znterest capitalized in 1996 and 1995 J.simaaterial to the total in property, plant and equipment. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOAR/) OF HEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
2 - 

Investments - Statutes authorize the Board to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, axed inetrtmantalities, co:mercia1 paper rated A-1 by StandArd & Pear's Corporation or P-1 by Moody'a Commercial Paper Record, hankers' acceptances and r~,purchaae agreements. Xn addition, the pension trl~et fund is authorisad t0 invest in corporate bonds rated A or bettor by Standard & Poor Corporatiox~ or AAA or better by Moody's Investors Service, and equity securities. The Board's lnvas~ents at December 31, 1996 are categorized below to give an indication of the leveler risk assumed by the Board at year-end. Category 1 includes inveet~mnnts that are insured or registered or securities which are held by the Boarci or its agents in the Board's name. Category 2 inl:ludes uninsured and unregistered investments with the securities held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the Board's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and u|tregistered investments where the securities are held by the oounterpsrty or by its trust department or agent but not in the Board's haste. 
Enterprise Fund: U.S. Government Sscuritiq~s and Ins:trmnentalities U.S. Government SscuritiqJs and Instrumentalities Rapurchae~a AgraQments Deferred Conpansatlon Mutual Fund 
Pension Trust Fund Money Market Corporate Bonds U.S. Government Agency U.S. Governlant Beourltlos U.S. Government Insured Equities 

CARRYING MARKET VALUE 
$ 974,520 $ 975,000 4,766,817 450,000 562,689 ~6;754t026 
$ 3,193,077 18,619,499 26,421,978 7,836,301 2,326,336 _.50,795,685 

4,798,044 450,000 

$ 3,193,077 18,487,273 25,713,306 7,924,665 2,289,121 62.892.147 
2 2 2 

As of Dece~er 31, 1995, t~e Board's investments of $21,318,270 in the enterprise fund and $94,37;1,355 in the pension trust fund had market values of $21,402,.191 and $106,194,612, respectively. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
3 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
Plan Descriotion The Board has a single i~mployer contributory retirement plan ooverlng~all full-time employees, thll Pension Trust Fund (PTF). The Board's payroll for current employees coverlid by PTF for the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995 was $33,718,695 an,~ $31,952,080, respectively/ such amounts exclude overtime and standby payroll. Total payroll, including overtime and standby payroll, was $39,467,395 and $36,468,943 for the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively, At December 31, the PTF membership consisted ofz 1996 1995 Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them Current: employees Vested Nonvested 

Total 

54_2 s7_o0 804 742 847 854 1,651 1,596 
The benefit provisions were established by action of the Board of 1956 in accordance with Louisialla statutes. The Board retains exclusive control over the plan through the Pension Committee of the PTF. Effective January 1, 1996, the plan is qualified under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) and thus is tax exentpt. The plan provides for retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. A11 benefitE~ vest after ten years of service. Employees who retire at or after agesixty-two with ten years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable biweekly for life, in an amount equal to two pe|'cent of their average compensation for each year of credited service up to ten years, increasing by (1) one-half percent per year for service years over ten years, (2) an additional one-half percent par year for service yea|:s over twenty years and (3) an additional one percent per year for service years over thirty years, for a maximum of four percent for each year of credited l|ervice. Average compensation is the average annual earned compensation lairs $1,200 for the period of thirty-six successive months of service durir.g which the employee's compensation was the highest. Employees with thirty ~ears or more of credited service may retire at or after age fifty.-five without a reduction in benefits. Employees may retire prior to age sixty-two and/or without thirty years of service with a reduction of three pari~ent for each year of age below the age of sixty-two if an employee has a mi]limum of thirty years creditable service to the Board. If an omployee leaves i~overed employment or dies before three years of oredltod service, the ~accumulated employee contributions plus related investment earnings ar~ refunded to the employee or designated beneficiary. The retirement ellowanc!e for retirees over age sixty-two is subject to e cost of living adjustment each January 1, provided that the member retired on or after January 1, 1984. 
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TABLE XIII Monthly Ter~perature (Degrees Farenheit) of the Mississippi River Water at the Carrollton Plant MONTH JANUARY 39 FEBRUARY 3g MARCH 45 APRIL 57 MAY 67 JUNE 75 JULY 81 AUGUST 83 SEPTEMBE"R 80 OCTOBER 71 NOVEMBER 61 DECEMBER 47 m MAXIMUM ~7 MINIMUM 35 AVERAGE 

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 4' 40 39 37 35 40 45 4~ 41 41 38 36 38 48 5 47 47 38 42 43 52 5~ 56 52 48 53 55 57 6: 65 63 60 62 62 68 7: 75 72 71 71 77 76 7~ 79 78 76 77 82 83 8~ 80 77 76 77 85 83 81 78 74 75 76 84 82 6~ 67 64 62 66 73 72 5' 53 54 51 57 60 62 5q 45 41 41 46 50 51 88 81 80 80 88 84 3q 38 36 35 32 36 40 61 59 56 58 62 65 
Ten-Year Period Maximum 90 Minimum 32 Average 61 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTE8 EO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
3 - 

Re:tire,s and beneficiaries, includlng terminated employees not yet rsoeIvlng benefits $ 50,397,763 $ 46, 851,579 Active membsrss Accumulated employee contributions including allocated investment Income Employer financed - vested Employer financed - Nonvested Total pension benefit obligation NEJt assets evailabls for benefits; at cost (market value! $121,429,737 1996; $107,098,004, 1995) Unfunded pension b~neflt ~,bllgation 
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13,044,924 31,634,850 __21,871,405 12,060,092 32,236,119 22,185,886 116,948,942 113,343,676 
108,962,119 
7f986r823 

95,275,747 
18rO67f929 



SEWERAG~I AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
3 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the actuarially determined employer contribution requirement are the same as those used to compute the pension benefit obligation. The actuarielly determined contribution requiremenh for the Board is 16.85 percent and for employees is 4.0 percent. The actual Board's and employee's contributions (including contributions for transEerred employees from other pension plans) for years ended 1996 and 1995 were $5,759,387 and $5,206,407 and $1,471,980 and $1,399,273, respectively, and were made in accordance with actuarially determined requirementf~ computed through the actuarial valuations performed at Decel~er 31, 1996 and 1995. These total contributions consisted of the followingl Percentage of covered 1996 Payroll Normal service costs Amortization of unfunded actuarial liability Total coatributions 
Hormalservice costs Amortization of unfunded actuarial liability Total contributions 
Trend Information 

$2,895,577 4,335.790 8.59% 12.86% 21.45% Percentage of covered 1995 Payroll $2,644,701 8.28% 3,960,979 12.39% 20.67% 
Trend information give~ an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to p~Ly benefits when due. Ten-year trend information is included as listed in the table of contents. For the years ended in 1996, 1995 and 1994, net assEJts available for benefits were sufficient to fund 84.1, and 81.5 percenti respectively, of the plan's pension benefit obligation. Unfunded p~nsion benefit obligation represented 23.7, 56.6, and 64.3 percent of the anniJal covered payroll for current covered employees for the years ended Decembe!r 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. In addition, for the years ended 1996, 1995 and 1994, the Board's contributions to the PTF, as made in accord~ince with actuarially determined requirements, were 17.1, 16.3, and 17.0 pl~rcent, respectlvely, of annual covered payroll. Employee oontributionE for the years ended 1996, 1995, and 1994, as made in accordance with actuar:Lally dete~nlned requirements, were 4.6, 4.4, and 4.0 percent, respectiv~ly, of annual covered payroll. 
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SE~HAGE AJ;D WATER BOARD OF NEW OR/~ANS 
E~I~K RP RZ SE FUND Deoe~ber 31, 1996 and 1995 

Prope;,~ty, plant and equipment I~s15 ! acctmulated dE,preclation 
Restricted assets: Capital projects Construction funds Debt servine reserve Health insurance reserve Customer deposits Deferred nol~ensution Debt servicer Othsr 
Current assets: Cash Account receivable: Customers (net of allowan~e for doubtful accounts) Taxes Interest Other Due from City of New Orleans, current Inventory of supplles Prepaid expenses 

1996 1995 
$1,130,304,414 -- 310,317,697 --. 819,986,717 
66,386,129 13,226,919 10,247,025 8,938,672 4,953,221 562,689 499,417 212,000 

$1,092,624,022 286,167,376 806,456,646 
81,947,238 15,294,820 10,247,025 8,452,475 4,671,170 274,428 538,741 212,000 - 105,026,072 121,637,897 1,269,001 1,074,342 

200,000 5,778,417 -.. 282,783 Total current asssts _. 19,246,278 Due~ from City of New Orleans, less current portion 1,326,364 Other assets~ Bond issue costs Deposits 
Total asse, ts 

684,465 51,315 735,780 
(Continued) 
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200,000 5,713,835 318,227 -- 19,584,960 1,393,175 
839,478 51,315 890,793 
949f963~471 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
4 - 

Property, plant and equipment in eervine~ Real estate rights Power and pumping etationss Buildings Machinery Sewer House connections Power transmission Treatment plants General plant items Buildings 

1996 1995 Useful Lives 
878,916 $ 878,916 19,970,545 20,130,574 92,7?4,588 10,903,674 4,529,913 85,456,476 38,237,168 

18,353,764 19,749,842 91,382,941 10,903,644 4,529,913 82,848,519 34,828,836 1,336,971 Total property, plant end equipment in service 274,218,824 264,813,347 Addz property, plant ~.nd equipment in progresi~ 62,68~46~6 Total property, plant and equipment 336,903,291 322,915,719 Lease accumulated depretciatlon 95,830~~44 89,033,167 Net property, plant and equipment - sevwerege depar tmeni: ~ 241,07_2~54/7 ~233,882,552 
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ENTERPRISE FUND Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises-wh~:re the intent of the governing body is that the costs (~xpenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user chtrges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determi- nation of revenues earned, expens.'s incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, pub- lic policy management control, accountability, or other purposes. 



SEWERAGIC AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS N~CES TO FINANCXAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
5 .- Customer receivables at December 31, 1996 and 1995 consist of the following 
1996 
1995 
Water Sewer 
Water Sewer 

Customer J~ccounte.. $ IJ,118,250 ___,;,257,11~ s;:2,375,36~ $ :3,250,814 4,329,29Q szz,sso,zo~ 6 - Due fr(~m the City of New Orleans 
7 - 
In acco New Orl unearne $200,00 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts $2,600,481 1,328o528 
$2,509,181 ~4L028,209 

$5,517,769 2~928,585 ~8;446f354 $5,741,633 2,810,262 ~er551r895 

The following is a summary of changes in contributed capital by source: 
C~ntrlbuted~ MunicApalAty Developers and others Federal and State 

BalaNce J'anaury;lt 1996 Additions Bad Debt 
$ 8,86~,396 $ - $ 65,67E,527 521,396 56,22(1,539 ~130f77()1462 
Balal|ce ~anaury In 1995 Contributedt Municipaklity $ 8,8613,396 Developers and others 65,27'r~332 Federal and State .=56r22'Et539 ~130f37Zf267 

Balance 
- $ 8,868,396 (498,320) 65,698,603 

A~ditions Bad Debt 
$ $ - 398,195 
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56,2261539 ~130;7931538 Balance 
$ 8,868,396 65,675,527 56t226r539 ~130f770t462 



SEWERAGE ~D WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES TO FINANCIkL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
8 - B__~nds pav~_le Bonds payable consisted of the following 
De,so rlpt io_n_s. 7|; water revenue bonds, aeries 1986 due in annual princlpal InstellmentB ranging from $4~35#000 to $2,335,000; final p|lyment due Deoember I, 2003 

7% drainage system bonds, series 1!)86 B, due in annual prirLcipal Installments ranging from $3,360,000 to $3,600,000; final payment due December It Ic-~98 
5.00% to 5.15% drainage el,stem bonds, series 1994, due is~ annual principal installm~Jnts ranging from $855,000 to $1,140,000; final payment due Nove~er 1, 2003 
Lesss oul~rent maturities 

11-26 

$ 9,450,000 $11,855,000 

2,960,000 5,680,000 

6,960,000 10,100,000 

26,290,000 35,370,000 
9,510;000 $16,780,000 



SEWERAG]," AND WATER DOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NC~.~S TO FINANCIAL BTAT~NTS (Continued) 
8 - The annual requirements to amortize all bonds payable as of December 31, 1996 including interest paylente of $4,394,490, are as followes Tsar Revenue lends TaX Bonds Total 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002-2003 

$ 2,996,500 2,258,C50 2,2?4,950 2,296,950 533,C00 __.1,0671550 
$ 8,218,708 5,053,558 1,196,808 1,195,058 1,201,058 .._~1392,500 

$1 215 311 471 491 734 
208 608 658 908 058 

The indentures under which these bonds were issued provide for the establishment of! restricted funds for debt service as followsz 1. Debt service funds are required for the payment of interest and principal on the revenue end tax bonds. Monthly deposits on revenue bonds are required to be made into this fund from operations in an amount equal to 1/6 of the interest falling due on the next interest payment date, end an amount equal t3 1/12 of the principal falllng due on the next principal payment date. All debt service funds are administered by the Board of Liquidation. The required amount to be accumulated in this fund was $249,708 and $~173,214 at December 31, 1996 end 1995, respectively; the accumul~Lted balance at December 31, 1996 end 1995 was $499,417 end $538,741, respectively. 2. A debt service resE~rve is required for an amount equal to but not less than fifty percentof the amount required to be credited in said month to the debt servic~i fund until there shall be accumulated in the debt service reserve el:count the largest mnount required in any future calendar year to pay the principal and interest on outstanding bonds, except for the water and drainage 9 mill tax bonds. The water and drainage 9 mill te~ bonds require an amount equal to the largest amount required in any fut~are calendar year to pay the principal of end interest on outstanding bonds. There is no debt service reserve required for the drainage 6 m.ill tax bonds. The required amount to be accumulated in this fund was $10,010,900 and $10,247,075 at December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively; the a~ccumulated balance at December 31, 1996 and 1995 was $10,247,025, reepei:tively. The net operating reveDues of the Water Department of the Board for the year ended December 31, 1991; were adequate to meet the bond indenture required debt earvi~e coverage q3f 130 percent. The ~oard is in compliance with the requlr,mante of its lollg-term debt agreements at December 31, 1996. The statutory limit of tax bonds at December 31, 1996, is $86,000,000 providing a debt margill for tax bonds of $69,160,000. 
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SEWERAGI: AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS WO~ES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
12 - n I Significant projects included in property, plant and equipment in progress as of December 31, 1996 include the following: Warehouse facility at Central Yard "C" basins at the Carrollton Water Treatment Plant Existing Wator and Sewer Mains Upgrade of multiple hearthfurance, East Bank Sewerage Treatment Plant Drainage Pumping Station #1 b. Self-insurance The Board is self-insttrnd for general liability, worker's compensation, unemployment compensation and hospitalization benefits and claims. Settled claims have not exceeded excess coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. Hospitalization benefits and unemployment compensation are charged to payroll related exj)enss. 

Worker's compensation expense provision for 1996 and 1995 amounted to $2,883,925 and $934,339, respectively. The Board is responsible under state statute for all unemployment compensation claims b], former en~loyeas. The Board's expense provision for unemployment amounted to $11,589 and $18,351 in 1996 and $18,351 in 1995 and i8 included in payroll related expense. The expense provision for unemployment is recognized when incurred. The hospitalization s,elf-insurance bsnefits are administered by Blue Cross of Louisiana. The Board's expense provision in excess of the employee contributions for 1996 and 1995 amounted approximately $4,950,000 and $5,390,000 respectively, and is included in payroll related expense. Changes in the claims payable ~Lmount is as follows: 
F~Lseal Beginning 5~ear of Year 1994 $12,069,878 1995 $13,327,04~ 1996 $15,994,567 

Current Year Claims and Estimate Chanqe ~,738,881 ~,862,24] ~,120,501 
Contract Claim Adjustments Pa~ents 
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End of Year - 1,481,683 13,327,046 1,500,000 2,694,720 15,994,567 (3,000,000) 3,279,806 14,835,262 



SEI~RAG| AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS B/~kH CE SHEETs ENTERPRI SE FUND 
15 - 

16 - 

In Bovlmber 1994, G.~.SB issued Statmumnt No. 27, &ccountlnq for Pensions by State and l~oal Gover~aent Employers, which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, /997. This Stat~ent establishes standards for the maasurmsent, recognition and display of pension expenditures/expense and related liabilities, assets, note disclosures and required supplementary inforlation in the financial ststmaents of state and local governmental muployors. Xn February 1996, GJtSB which is effective for Statement requires the expenditures/expenses liability for unpaid c Laias and sodlfies current disclosure requlraaents. The impact of these pronouncements are being reviewed by management of the Board. 
On ~pril 12, 1997, Drainage Station #O had a fire, causing infrastructure end Rechanical dmnage.' 
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SE~RAGE I~D WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTE~I TO FINRNCIAL STATEMENTS (Contlnned) 
12 - 

The Board, as well as othilr utilities, is subject to environmental standards imposed hy federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations. Based upon pendin9 judiclal and administrative proceedings, the Board does not expect its environmental compliance fines and penalties, if any, to exceed ameunts provided for in the financial statements. The Board is participating in specific federal financial assistance programs which are subject to financlel and compliance audits by various agencies. No significant disallowed costs are anticipated. 13 - Deferred Compensation Plan The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. This plan, available to all employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Tile deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property, and rights purchased with those amounts, end all income attributable to those amounts, property or ri%hts are (until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the Board (without being restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to the claims of the Board's general creditors. The Board's responsibility includes overseeing the use of the plan assets, which ere recorded at a market vellle of $562,689 and $274,428 as of December 31, 1996 and 1995. The assets and corresponding participants' liability are recorded on the balance sheet in restricted assets and in long-term liabilities. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the Board in an emourt equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant. 14 - Budqets Operating and capital e):penditure budgets are adopted by the Board on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. While not legally required, this t,udgetary information is employed as a management control device during t~e year. Comparison between actual and budgeted expenses is not a requil'ed presentation for an Enterprise Fund. 
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SEWERAGE AND HATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTES rO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
3 - Defined Benefit pension Pl~kn (Continu_ed~ 

4 - Pxoperty, Plant and Equipmsnt Property, plant and equipment consisted of the followingz 
Property, plant and equipment in services Real estate rights Power and pumping stationsl Buildings Machinery Distribution systems Connections and meters Fuel oil tanks Power transmission ~3neral plant items Buildings 

1996 1995 Useful Lives 
$ 2,898,138 $ 2,898,138 42,907,758 86,823,633 95,561,104 22,332,279 138,373 6,837,929 48,570,650 2,959~9~0 

42,054,503 85,013,261 94,455,099 22,332,279 138,377 6,839,998 45,989,627 -- 2,959,970 Total property, plant and equipment in service 309,029,834 302,681,252 Adds property, plant and equipment in progress 33,452,302 23,000,059 Total property, plant and equipment 342,482,136 325,681,311 Lesst accumulated depreciation 123,674L733" 114,991,237 Net property, plant and equipment - water depa rtment ~218,807x.403 $210,690,074 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS Schedule 5 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PENSION TRUST FUND REVENUES BY SOURCE AND EXPENSES BY TYPE Ter Yeere Ended December 31. 1996 Revenues by SOUrCe 

Fiscal Year Benefits Refunds $5,54e,544 5,4:_~2,117 4,B ~16,393 4,5 ~5,392 4,541,457 4,2~)1,99B 4,1 ~8.986 4.043.306 3,74g,g71 3.430.112 

$313,710 (3) 311,294 374,408 133.201 309,e19 190,015 291,991 335,709 231.263 187.518 

$5.062,254 5,733,411 5,220,801 4,678.593 4,851,276 4,482,013 4.4e0.g77 4,379,015 3,981,234 3,617,630 
Contributions were made in eo:orden0e with actuerLally determined contribution requirement. (1) Em ptoyee cont rib ut ions inclu ::le reciproc8 transferred of $237,054. (2) Employer contributions include reciprocal transferred of $76,497. 

transfers from the City of New Orleans for employees who transfers from the City of New Orleans for employees who (3) Benefits include reciprocal tr ansfera out of $93,090. (4) Employee contributions incILde reciprocal transfers from the City of New Orleans for employees who transferred of $227,439. (5) Emp~yerc~ntributi~nsinciujere~ipr~ca~transfersfr~mtheCity~fNew~le~nsf~remp~yeeswh~ transferred of $563,082. 
See acconlpanying independent auditors' report. 
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SL~ERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 1996 &CTUAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

C-P.__I 313 316 317 326 339 348 360 364 366 
c.p. # 381 
600 800 

Force Main East GentilI~ Sub-Mains & L~C~I Sewers Normal E):tensior~s & Replacement of Gravity Ma~.ns Extensions & Re|)lacement to Sewer Pumping Stations Mains in Street~; Dept Contracts Normal Exteneiol|s and Replacements Treatmont Plaltts Repairs and/or l~placement of Sewer Lines Force Mains Rep~Lacements Irish Bayou-Lakl) Catherine Sewerage 

$ 1,827,929.11 257,180.00 457,888.94 136,212.38 1,406,415.83 2,176,196.32 2,160,688.59 41,993.20 __ (164,360.82) TOTAL SEWERAGE ;3YST~4 ~ 8,300,143.55 
Modification & :Expansion of WBSTP to MGD 607,214.00 
TOT.ALSEt~GE TREETMERT ~ 607.214,00 Sewerage Share of Power Projects Sewerage Share of General Budget Items 321,489.72 5,236,134.13 ~T&L SEWERAGE DEPAR~4EJ~ $14.464.981,40 

*NOTE z These figure|; do not in(:lude proration of interest expense. 
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~l'ear 1997 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 
Principal Interest Principal Interest 
Principal Interest Principal Interest 
Principal interest 

SEWERAGE AN[) WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS SCHEDULE OF FUTURE DEBT PAYMENTS December 31. 1996 
Water Revenue Bonds 
$2,335,000 661,500 1,760,000 498,050 1 ,go0,O00 374,850 
2,055,000 241,850 435,000 98,000 
465,000 67,550 500,000 35.O0O 
9,450,000 1,976,800 

9-mill 1986 "A" 
$2,960,000 207,200 

2,960,000 207,200 

9-mill 1986 "B" 
$3,360,000 487.200 3,600,000 252.000 

6,960,000 739.200 

6-mill 1994 
$855,000 349,308 895,000 306,558 935,000 261,808 980,000 215.058 1,035,000 166,058 
1,080,000 113.790 1,140,000 58.710 
6,920,000 1.471.290 

$9,510,000 1,705,208 6,255,000 1,056,608 2,835,000 636,658 
3,035,000 456,908 1,470,000 264.058 
1,545,000 181,340 1,640,000 93.710 
26,290,000 4,394,490 To~tl $11,426,800 $3,167,200 $7,699,200 $8,391,290 $30,684,490 
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SmCIRAGE 

Direct debt: SewerAge B.nd Water ~oard, not: of debt sorvlco funds (TwLx bonds only) Overlapping debt: City of Now Orleans Audubon Park Commlsltlon Orleans Parish School Boar~ Orleans Levee District (i} Total overlapping debt Total direct and overlapping debt 
(i) The fiscal year of the ( District ends on June financial information. 
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December :31, 1995o (~aaLud3.ted) 
1995 Jussosmed value Po~oan~o of tot"~ 88mlmBod value Sou1:h Central Bell Tell.phone Utilities $ 77,957,000 4.4% Tlilephone Co. New Orleans Public Service, Inc. Elo(~tric and Gas 69,302,000 3.9 Utilities HibaDrnia National Financial InBtitution 23,177,000 1.3 Bank FirJ~t National Bank Fin~Lncial Institution 19,917,000 I. 1 o:[ Commerce Westminster City Off:ice Real Estate 19,819,000 i.i Center Properties Canal Place 2000 Off:ice Real Estate 18,429,000 Whitney National Bank Fin~tncial Institution ii,300,000 O:E New Orleans 

1.0 .6 
Gerald D. Hines & OffLce Real Estate 10,856,000 .6 Associates Ayrshire Larzd Joint OffLce Real Estate 9,832,000 .5 Ventures American Telephone Telnphone Utility and Telegraph 
Source: City of New Orleans (*) The latest date available for the Ton Largest Taxpayers in the City of New Orl~ans is for the year ended December 31, 1995. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS NOTE8 TO FINANCIAL STATE~LENTS (Continued) 
9 - Bond Refinancinq In August 1986, the Board defeased water and sewer bonds. The amount of defensed sewerage and wat~r revenue bonds remaining outstanding as of December 31, 1996 and 199!i, was $8,545,000 and $10,040,000, respectlvely. 10 - Due to Citv of New Orleans5 The Board bills and collects sanitation charges on behalf of the Clty of New Orleans (City). The Boar,~ is not llable for any uncollected sanitation charges. The amount due the City for sanitation fees collected was $238,100 and $338,!i80 at December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively. II - property Taxes Property taxes are levied by the City of New Orleans. Taxes on real and personal property attach as an enforceable lien on the property as of January I. Taxes are leviBd on January 1, are payable on January 1, and are delinquent on February 1. The assessed value of the property is determined by an elected Board of ~ssessors. The assessed value for 1996 was $1,784,739,000. The combined tax rate dedicated for thlJ Board for the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995 was $22.59 per $I,000 of assessed valuation. These dedicated funds ere aLVailable for operations, maintenance, construction and extension of the drainage system (except for subsurface systems). 
~L. Canita] Improvements At December 31, 1996, the Board's budget for its five year oapital improvements program totalled $565,098,000 including $145,601,000 for water, $165,972,000 for sewerage and $253,525,000 for drainage. Due to certain regulatory end legislatlve changes, additional capital improvements will probably be required. Fu:ure capital improvement program expenditures may require the issuance of a lditional debt depending on the amount end timing of expenditures. The Board has coa~itted or appropriated $66,386,129 in investments for use in fuLure capital projects and has $13,226,919 of bond proceeds remaining for c~nstruction. The capital project investments are J~ncluded ill restricted assets. The capital improvements budget for 1997 is $79,709,000 
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The S&WB Water Quality Laboratory is one of the most modern in the nation. 

Drainage purrps require daily maintenance and testing 
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GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans. LA 7013!~-359~ 
I:~DEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Members of the Board Sewerage and Water Board oE New Orleans: We have audited the gener~l purpose Water Board of New Orleans as of and financial statements of the Sewerage and for the year ended December 31, 1996, and 
We conducted our audits in and Government Auditinu St States. Those standards z reasonable assurance about 

accordance with generally accepted auditing standards ndards issued by the Comptroller General of the United squire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain whether the financial statements are free of materlal misstatement. An audit includes ex~21ning, on s test basis, evidence supporting t~ke alount8 and dieclosureI~ in the financial statements. An audit also Includes a~sessing the accounting prlnciples used and significant estimates made by mnnagement, as well as eva:Luatlng the overall financial statement presentation. We belleve that our audits provide n reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matEtrial respects, the financial position of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Ol~leans as of December 31, 1996, and the results of operations and cash flowll for the year ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the individual fund f~nancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of i~ach of the individual funds of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans as of December 31, 1996 and 1995, and the result of ~erations and cash flows of such funds for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In accordance with Oovern~ent Auditing_Standards, we have also issued a report, dated April 24, 1997, on our consideration of the Board's internal control structure and a report, dated April 24, 1997, on its compllanee with laws and regulations. Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 1996 general purpose financial etatemerts and on the 1996 and 1995 individual fund flnanclal statements taken as a who).e. The accompanying financial informatlon listed as supplementary info1~atlon in the accompanying table of contents is presented for purposes of additional anatysis and is not a required part of the general purpose and individual fund financial statements of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures epplled in the audit of the generaJ purpose and individual fund financial statements and, in our opinion, is fair1] stated in all material respects in relatlon to the gsneral purpose financialstatements and each of the individual fund financial statements taken as a who:Le. 
Aprll 24, 1997 
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THE SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS DEPARTMENT IIEADS OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 
MARTIN Fo COMER, JR. MANAGEMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

David M. Soublet 
Sue D. Mitchell 
Kevin F. Walsh 
Betty W. Latino 
Carol W. Warren 
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THE SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS DIVISION HI'ADS OF GENERAL 
G. JOSEPII SULLIVAN GENERAL SUPERINTENDENT 

Rudolph S. St. Germain 
Glenn M. Semel 
Warren J. Lawrence 
John R. Huerkamp 
Clinton E. Nation 
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TltE SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS DIVISION HEADS OF DEPUTY DIRECTOR 
MARCIA A. ST. MARTIN DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

Ann M. Boulware 
Gordon C. Austin 
Martin F. Comer, Jr 
Lawrence J. Federleo, Jr 
Paul D. Mumme, Sr 
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COMMITTEES OF TIIE SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

HENRY A. DILLON, JR. - Chairperson TROY A. CARTER KATHERINE RUSSO MARALDO 
CAROLYN J. HARRI;; CLARENCE J. JUPITER PEGGY WILSON - Chairperson 

JAMES M. SINGLETON PEGGY WILSON 
STAFFORD R. TUREAUD, SR. MARY K. ZERVIGON 

KY~THERINE RUSSO MARALDO - Chairperson HENRY A. DILLON, JR. WILLIAM A. HOLTC~N, JR. CLARENCE J. JUPITER STAFFORD R. TUREAUD, SR. 
JAMES M. SINGLETON - Chairman TROY A. CARTER NORMAN N. FRANCIS BENJAMIN L. EDWARDS, SR. WILLIAM A. HOLTON, JR 
HENRY A. DILLON, JR. - Chairperson CAROLYN J. HARRIS ROSE WILLIAMS BUTLER WILLIAM A. HOLT(IN, JR. WARREN J. LA~hrRENCE PEGGY WILSON HOWARD E. NOLAND MARY K. ZERVIGON MARVIN R. RUSSELL, JR. SLABAUGH, MORGAN, CONEFRY & ASSOCIATES, Actuary 
TROY A. CARTER - Chairperson BENJAMIN L. EDWARDS, SR. JAMES M. SINGLETON KATHERINE RUSSO MARALDO PEGGY WILSON 
NORMAN N. FRANCIS - Chairperson BENJAMIN L. EDWARDS, SR. MARY K. ZERVIGON G. JOSEPH SULLIVtd~I 

1-13 

WARREN J. LAWRENCE RONALD CROSBY JAMES C. FINLEY 



 

MEMBERS OF S~/ERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

MARC H. MORIAL Mayor 
JAMES M, SINGLETON Councilmember-at-Larg~ 
PEGGY WIt.SON 
TROY A. CARTER 
CLARENCE J. JUPITER 
MARY K, ZERVIGON 
WILLIAM A. HOLTON, JR 
CAROLYN J. HARRIS 
NORMAN N. FRANCIS 
STAFFORD R. TUREAUD, SI~ 
HENRY A. DILLON, JR. 
BENJAMIN L. EDWARDS, SR 
KATHERINE RUSSO MARAL1)O 
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Councilmcmber-at-Largc 
Councilman District C 

Member - Board of Liquidation, City Debt 
Member - Board of Liquidation, City Debt 

Councilmanic Distrlet A 
Councilmanic District B 
Councilmanic District C 
Councilmanic District D 
Councilmanic District E 
At-Large Member 
At-Large Member 



OFFICERS of the ~EWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
December 31, 1996 

MARC H, MORIAI Mayor, City of New Orleans 
HENRY A. DILLON, JR. 

MARCIA A. ST. MARTIN 
G. JOSEPH SULLIVAN 
JOHN D. LAMBERT, JR 
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President 
President Pro Tern 
Executive Director 
Deputy Director 
General Superintendent 
Special Counsel 



MI~,SION STATEMENT To be one of the best and mos~ respected suppliers of sewer, water, and drainage services in the south-central United States by providing quafity, reliable, and cost effective services to our Custom,~rs while maintaining fair and ethical treatment of our well-trained and highly motivated employees. 

OUR VALUES Open. honest communication Trust .~nd respect for each other Offering and encouraging education and opportunity to employees Fostering enthusiasm among employees through example of the / nanagers/sup ervisors Providing direction and planning and encouraging interdepartmental team work Assuring reliability in providing services to customers 

KEY RESULT AREAS Customer Satisfaction Cost Effectiveness Fmployee Satisfaction Capabilitie'.; Improvement through Training 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
Corn 


